Hanscom Field Advisory Commission
Tuesday, March 16, 2021, 7-8 p.m.
Location: Zoom video platform
https://zoom.us/j/95621754230?
pwd=b3A3UTJUR3I1U28ydW5WTVRtMi9xUT09
Meeting: 956 2175 4230 Passcode: 194503 Ph: (646) 876 9923
Agenda
1. Call to order
2. February Recording https://zoom.us/rec/share/KjpCwhxDLCCEwBFj0bzjF1AqIW0C_H7YHNvFeiZQ6DW5PI1TnnOGszggMfBiJX2.pEt8rGOy1
M9uliYO Access Passcode: j?QiA?F2
3. Announcements
a. FAA Comment
4. Approval of previous minutes
5. Questions for Massport
a. What is the plan to replace leaded fuel; is UL94 a viable option?
b. Request for massport legal statement on regulation of aerial actions
c. How are noise reports sent to the FAA and what happens next?
6. Recent noise reports, presented by Massport
7. Capital projects, third-party development report, presented by Massport
8. ESPR Chapter 10: Cultural and Historic Resources
9. Relevant Laws
a. THE AIRPORT NOISE AND CAPACITY ACT OF 1990
i. https://www.lawa.org/-/media/lawa-web/projects-and-reports/
airport_noise_and_capacity_act_of_1990.ashx
b. https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/
Chapter90/Section35
10. Citizen comments
11. Next meeting April 20, 2021
a. ESPR Chapter 11: Sustainability and Environmental Management
b. Future developments in aviation
12. Adjourn

Provisional Calendar
This calendar is provided for planning and information purposes only and is
not part of the agenda. All items and dates are subject to change.
4/20/2021
5/18/2021

1. HFAC Commission Chair Selection
2. ESPR Chapter 11: Sustainability & Environmental
Management
1. ESPR Chapter 1: Executive Summary

6/15/2021

1. ESPR Chapter 2: Facilities & Infrastructure

7/20/2021

1. ESPR Chapter 3: Airport Activity Levels
No august meeting

9/21/2021

1. ESPR Chapter 4: Airport Planning

10/19/2021

1. ESPR Chapter 5: Regional Transportation

11/16/2021

1. ESPR Chapter 6: Ground Transportation

12/21/2021

1. ESPR Chapter 7: Noise

Submitted to Mass DOT Aeronautics Division via Website 2/20/2021
I chair the Hanscom Field Advisory Commission, which was created in 1980 by the
Massachusetts legislature to facility communication between the management of
Hanscom Field (Massport) and residents of the nearby communities affected by
operations at the airport.
We have contacted you several times for assistance identifying any state regulatory
agency able to take action in cases where pilots may be lying improperly in ways
that are bothersome and might be dangerous to people on the ground.
Speci ically:
1. What local or state regulatory agency is responsible for allegations of improper
and bothersome aircraft operation?
2. Does Massport have authority to require operators of aircraft to limit their impact
on residents in the area?
The Hanscom Field Advisory Commission is not in a position to determine if these
allegations are correct. We are trying to determine the best course of action open to
residents with these complaints.

f

f

Christopher Eliot, Ph.D.
HFAC, Chair
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I was very impressed by the research eﬀort in the “Neighborhood Environmental Survey”. However, I
believe the DNL measure reflects problems from jet aircraft and trivializes issues related to general
aviation.
As Chair of the Hanscom Field Advisory Commission I listen to citizen complaints and review airport
noise statistics every month. Operations at Hanscom Field involve every category of aircraft, large and
small jets, helicopters, military flights and general aviation. The vast majority of the complaints I hear
involve general aviation, most often touch and go pattern flights that impact certain neighborhoods
every fifteen minutes for hours at a time, almost every weekend. The total noise experience does not
rank high in a measure of DNL but these people experience a real and high level of disturbance. It is the
annoyance of a mosquito buzzing above their head, every fifteen minutes, all day long, every day of
every weekend and greatly impacts their quality of life.
While this disturbance aﬀects a smaller percentage of the American public than operations by large jets
at major airports, those people who live near airports with flight schools report a major impact to their
lives and should not be forgotten. These people cannot use and enjoy their own backyard because they
live in the flight pattern of routine touch and go operations.
I am aware of the diﬃculty in finding a solution to this problem, but the American sense of responsibility
does not allow us to throw away the lives of some people in the name of the greater good. The fact that
touch and go flight operations impact fewer American lives than commercial jet traﬃc is not an excuse
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to ignore this problem.
I believe more needs to be done to characterize and respond to the disturbance created by touch and
go operations, in addition to the larger area disturbance represented by large commercial jets.
Christopher Eliot, Ph.D.
Hanscom Field Advisory Commission, Chair
124 Bedford Road
Lincoln, Massachusetts
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THE AIRPORT NOISE AND CAPACITY ACT OF 1990 (“ANCA”)
United States Code Annotated Currentness
Title 49. Transportation (Refs & Annos)
Subtitle VII. Aviation Programs
Part B. Airport Development and Noise
Chapter 475. Noise (Refs & Annos)
Subchapter II. National Aviation Noise Policy

§ 47521. Findings

Congress finds that-(1) aviation noise management is crucial to the continued increase in airport capacity;
(2) community noise concerns have led to uncoordinated and inconsistent restrictions on
aviation that could impede the national air transportation system;
(3) a noise policy must be carried out at the national level;
(4) local interest in aviation noise management shall be considered in determining the
national interest;
(5) community concerns can be alleviated through the use of new technology aircraft
and the use of revenues, including those available from passenger facility fees, for noise
management;
(6) revenues controlled by the United States Government can help resolve noise
problems and carry with them a responsibility to the national airport system;
(7) revenues derived from a passenger facility fee may be applied to noise management
and increased airport capacity; and
(8) a precondition to the establishment and collection of a passenger facility fee is the
prescribing by the Secretary of Transportation of a regulation establishing procedures
for reviewing airport noise and access restrictions on operations of stage 2 and stage 3
aircraft.

§ 47522. Definitions

In this subchapter-(1) "air carrier", "air transportation", and "United States" have the same meanings given
those terms in section 40102(a) of this title.
(2) "stage 3 noise levels" means the stage 3 noise levels in part 36 of title 14, Code of
Federal Regulations, in effect on November 5, 1990.

§ 47523. National aviation noise policy

(a) General requirements.--Not later than July 1, 1991, the Secretary of Transportation
shall establish by regulation a national aviation noise policy that considers this
subchapter, including the phaseout and nonaddition of stage 2 aircraft as provided in this
subchapter and dates for carrying out that policy and reporting requirements consistent
with this subchapter and law existing as of November 5, 1990.

(b) Detailed economic analysis.--The policy shall be based on a detailed economic
analysis of the impact of the phaseout date for stage 2 aircraft on competition in the
airline industry, including-(1) the ability of air carriers to achieve capacity growth consistent with the projected rate
of growth for the airline industry;
(2) the impact of competition in the airline and air cargo industries;
(3) the impact on nonhub and small community air service; and
(4) the impact on new entry into the airline industry.

§ 47524. Airport noise and access restriction review program

(a) General requirements.--The national aviation noise policy established under
section 47523 of this title shall provide for establishing by regulation a national program
for reviewing airport noise and access restrictions on the operation of stage 2 and stage 3
aircraft. The program shall provide for adequate public notice and opportunity for
comment on the restrictions.

(b) Stage 2 aircraft.--Except as provided in subsection (d) of this section, an airport
noise or access restriction may include a restriction on the operation of stage 2 aircraft
proposed after October 1, 1990, only if the airport operator publishes the proposed
restriction and prepares and makes available for public comment at least 180 days before
the effective date of the proposed restriction-(1) an analysis of the anticipated or actual costs and benefits of the existing
or proposed restriction;
(2) a description of alternative restrictions;
(3) a description of the alternative measures considered that do not involve aircraft
restrictions; and

(4) a comparison of the costs and benefits of the alternative measures to the costs and
benefits of the proposed restriction.
(c) Stage 3 aircraft.--(1) Except as provided in subsection (d) of this section, an airport
noise or access restriction on the operation of stage 3 aircraft not in effect on October 1,
1990, may become effective only if the restriction has been agreed to by the airport
proprietor and all aircraft operators or has been submitted to and approved by the
Secretary of Transportation after an airport or aircraft operator's request for approval as
provided by the program established under this section. Restrictions to which this
paragraph applies include-(A) a restriction on noise levels generated on either a single event or cumulative basis;
(B) a restriction on the total number of stage 3 aircraft operations;
(C) a noise budget or noise allocation program that would include stage 3
aircraft;
(D) a restriction on hours of operations; and
(E) any other restriction on stage 3 aircraft.
(2) Not later than 180 days after the Secretary receives an airport or aircraft operator's
request for approval of an airport noise or access restriction on the operation of a stage 3
aircraft, the Secretary shall approve or disapprove the restriction. The Secretary may
approve the restriction only if the Secretary finds on the basis of substantial evidence
that-(A) the restriction is reasonable, nonarbitrary, and nondiscriminatory;
(B) the restriction does not create an unreasonable burden on interstate or foreign
commerce;
(C) the restriction is not inconsistent with maintaining the safe and efficient use of the
navigable airspace;
(D) the restriction does not conflict with a law or regulation of the United States;
(E) an adequate opportunity has been provided for public comment on the restriction;
and
(F) the restriction does not create an unreasonable burden on the national
aviation system.
(3) Paragraphs (1) and (2) of this subsection do not apply if the Administrator of the
Federal Aviation Administration, before November 5, 1990, has formed a working
group (outside the process established by part 150 of title 14, Code of Federal
Regulations) with a local airport operator to examine the noise impact of air traffic
control procedure changes at the airport. However, if an agreement on noise reductions
at that airport is made between the airport proprietor and one or more air carriers or
foreign air carriers that constitute a majority of the carrier use of the airport, this
paragraph applies only to a local action to enforce the agreement.

(4) The Secretary may reevaluate an airport noise or access restriction previously agreed
to or approved under this subsection on request of an aircraft operator able to
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Secretary that there has been a change in the noise
environment of the affected airport that justifies a reevaluation. The Secretary shall
establish by regulation procedures for conducting a reevaluation. A reevaluation-(A) shall be based on the criteria in paragraph (2) of this subsection; and
(B) may be conducted only after 2 years after a decision under paragraph (2) of this
subsection has been made.
(d) Nonapplication.--Subsections (b) and (c) of this section do not apply to-(1) a local action to enforce a negotiated or executed airport noise or access agreement
between the airport operator and the aircraft operators in effect on November 5, 1990;
(2) a local action to enforce a negotiated or executed airport noise or access restriction
agreed to by the airport operator and the aircraft operators before November 5, 1990;
(3) an intergovernmental agreement including an airport noise or access restriction in
effect on November 5, 1990;
(4) a subsequent amendment to an airport noise or access agreement or restriction in
effect on November 5, 1990, that does not reduce or limit aircraft operations or affect
aircraft safety;
(5)(A) an airport noise or access restriction adopted by an airport operator not later than
October 1, 1990, and stayed as of October 1, 1990, by a court order or as a result of
litigation, if any part of the restriction is
subsequently allowed by a court to take effect; or
(B) a new restriction imposed by an airport operator to replace any part of a restriction
described in subclause (A) of this clause that is disallowed by a court, if the new
restriction would not prohibit aircraft operations in effect on November 5, 1990; or
(6) a local action that represents the adoption of the final part of a program of a staged
airport noise or access restriction if the initial part of the program was adopted during
1988 and was in effect on November 5, 1990.
(e) Grant limitations.--Beginning on the 91st day after the Secretary prescribes a
regulation under subsection (a) of this section, a sponsor of a facility operating under an
airport noise or access restriction on the operation of stage 3 aircraft that first became
effective after October 1, 1990, is eligible for a grant under section 47104 of this title
and is eligible to impose a passenger facility fee under section 40117 of this title only if
the restriction has been-(1) agreed to by the airport proprietor and aircraft operators;
(2) approved by the Secretary as required by subsection (c)(1) of this section; or
(3) rescinded.

§ 47525. Decision about airport noise and access restrictions on certain stage 2
aircraft

The Secretary of Transportation shall conduct a study and decide on the application of
section 47524(a)-(d) of this title to airport noise and access restrictions on the operation
of stage 2 aircraft with a maximum weight of not more than 75,000 pounds. In making
the decision, the Secretary shall consider-(1) noise levels produced by those aircraft relative to other aircraft;
(2) the benefits to general aviation and the need for efficiency in the national air
transportation system;
(3) the differences in the nature of operations at airports and the areas immediately
surrounding the airports;
(4) international standards and agreements on aircraft noise; and
(5) other factors the Secretary considers necessary.

§ 47526. Limitations for noncomplying airport noise and access restrictions

Unless the Secretary of Transportation is satisfied that an airport is not imposing an
airport noise or access restriction not in compliance with this subchapter, the airport may
not-(1) receive money under subchapter I of chapter 471 of this title; or
(2) impose a passenger facility fee under section 40117 of this title.

§ 47527. Liability of the United States Government for noise damages

When a proposed airport noise or access restriction is disapproved under this subchapter,
the United States Government shall assume liability for noise damages only to the extent
that a taking has occurred as a direct result of the disapproval. The United States Court
of Federal Claims has exclusive jurisdiction of a civil action under this section.

§ 47528. Prohibition on operating certain aircraft not complying with stage 3 noise
levels

(a) Prohibition.--Except as provided in subsection (b) or (f) of this section and section

47530 of this title, a person may operate after December 31, 1999, a civil subsonic
turbojet (for which an airworthiness certificate other than an experimental certificate has
been issued by the Administrator) with a maximum weight of more than 75,000 pounds
to or from an airport in the United States only if the Secretary of Transportation finds
that the aircraft complies with the stage 3 noise levels.

(b) Waivers.--(1) If, not later than July 1, 1999, at least 85 percent of the aircraft used
by an air carrier or foreign air carrier to provide air transportation comply with the stage
3 noise levels, the carrier may apply for a waiver of subsection (a) of this section for the
remaining aircraft used by the carrier to provide air transportation. The application must
be filed with the Secretary not later than January 1, 1999, or, in the case of a foreign air
carrier, the 15th day following the date of the enactment of the Wendell H. Ford
Aviation Investment and Reform Act for the 21st Century and must include a plan with
firm orders for making all aircraft used by the carrier to provide air transportation
comply with the noise levels not later than December 31, 2003.

(2) The Secretary may grant a waiver under this subsection if the Secretary finds it
would be in the public interest. In making the finding, the Secretary shall consider the
effect of granting the waiver on competition in the air carrier industry and on small
community air service.

(3) A waiver granted under this subsection may not permit the operation of stage 2
aircraft in the United States after December 31, 2003.

(c) Schedule for phased-in compliance.--The Secretary shall establish by regulation a
schedule for phased-in compliance with subsection (a) of this section. The phase-in
period shall begin on November 5, 1990, and end before
December 31, 1999. The regulations shall establish interim compliance dates. The
schedule for phased-in compliance shall be based on-(1) a detailed economic analysis of the impact of the phase out date for stage 2 aircraft
on competition in the airline industry, including-(A) the ability of air carriers to achieve capacity growth consistent with the projected
rate of growth for the airline industry;
(B) the impact of competition in the airline and air cargo industries;
(C) the impact on nonhub and small community air service; and
(D) the impact on new entry into the airline industry; and
(2) an analysis of the impact of aircraft noise on individuals residing near airports.
(d) Annual report.--Beginning with calendar year 1992--

(1) each air carrier shall submit to the Secretary an annual report on the progress the
carrier is making toward complying with the requirements of this section and regulations
prescribed under this section; and
(2) the Secretary shall submit to Congress an annual report on the progress being made
toward that compliance.

(e) Hawaiian operations.--(1) In this subsection, "turnaround service" means a flight
between places only in Hawaii.

(2)(A) An air carrier or foreign air carrier may not operate in Hawaii, or between a place
in Hawaii and a place outside the 48 contiguous States, a greater number of stage 2
aircraft with a maximum weight of more than 75,000 pounds than it operated in Hawaii,
or between a place in Hawaii and a place outside the 48 contiguous States, on November
5, 1990.

(B) An air carrier that provided turnaround service in Hawaii on November 5, 1990,
using stage 2 aircraft with a maximum weight of more than 75,000 pounds may include
in the number of aircraft authorized under subparagraph (A) of this paragraph all stage 2
aircraft with a maximum weight of more than 75,000 pounds that were owned or leased
by that carrier on that date, whether or not the aircraft were operated by the carrier on
that date.

(3) An air carrier may provide turnaround service in Hawaii using stage 2 aircraft with a
maximum weight of more than 75,000 pounds only if the carrier provided the service on
November 5, 1990.

(4) An air carrier operating stage 2 aircraft under this subsection may transport stage 2
aircraft to or from the 48 contiguous States on a nonrevenue basis in order-(A) to perform maintenance (including major alterations) or preventative maintenance
on aircraft operated, or to be operated, within the limitations of paragraph (2)(B); or
(B) conduct operations within the limitations of paragraph (2)(B).
(f) Aircraft modification, disposal, scheduled heavy maintenance, or leasing.-(1) In general.--The Secretary shall permit a person to operate after December 31, 1999,
a stage 2 aircraft in nonrevenue service through the airspace of the United States or to or
from an airport in the contiguous 48 States in order to-(A) sell, lease, or use the aircraft outside the contiguous 48 States;

(B) scrap the aircraft;
(C) obtain modifications to the aircraft to meet stage 3 noise levels;
(D) perform scheduled heavy maintenance or significant modifications on the aircraft at
a maintenance facility located in the contiguous 48 States;
(E) deliver the aircraft to an operator leasing the aircraft from the owner or return the
aircraft to the lessor;
(F) prepare or park or store the aircraft in anticipation of any of the activities described
in subparagraphs (A) through (E); or
(G) divert the aircraft to an alternative airport in the contiguous 48 States on account of
weather, mechanical, fuel, air traffic control, or other safety reasons while conducting a
flight in order to perform any of the activities described in subparagraphs (A) through
(F).
(2) Procedure to be published.--Not later than 30 days after the date of the enactment
of this subsection, the Secretary shall establish and publish a procedure to implement
paragraph (1) through the use of categorical waivers, ferry permits, or other means.
(g) Statutory construction.--Nothing in this section may be construed as interfering
with, nullifying, or otherwise affecting determinations made by the
Federal Aviation Administration, or to be made by the Administration with respect to
applications under part 161 of title 14, Code of Federal Regulations, that were pending
on November 1, 1999.

§ 47529. Nonaddition rule

(a) General limitations.--Except as provided in subsection (b) of this section and
section 47530 of this title, a person may operate a civil subsonic turbojet aircraft with a
maximum weight of more than 75,000 pounds that is imported into the United States
after November 4, 1990, only if the aircraft-(1) complies with the stage 3 noise levels; or
(2) was purchased by the person importing the aircraft into the United States under a
legally binding contract made before November 5, 1990.
(b) Exemptions.--The Secretary of Transportation may provide an exemption from
subsection (a) of this section to permit a person to obtain modifications to an aircraft to
meet the stage 3 noise levels.

(c) Aircraft deemed not imported.--In this section, an aircraft is deemed not to have
been imported into the United States if the aircraft--

(1) was owned on November 5, 1990, by-(A) a corporation, trust, or partnership organized under the laws of the United States or a
State (including the District of Columbia);
(B) an individual who is a citizen of the United States; or
(C) an entity that is owned or controlled by a corporation, trust, partnership, or
individual described in subclause (A) or (B) of this clause; and
(2) enters the United States not later than 6 months after the expiration of a lease
agreement (including any extension) between an owner described in clause (1) of this
subsection and a foreign carrier.

§ 47530. Nonapplication of sections 47528(a)-(d) and 47529 to aircraft outside the
48 contiguous States

Sections 47528(a)-(d) and 47529 of this title do not apply to aircraft used only to
provide air transportation outside the 48 contiguous States. A civil subsonic turbojet
aircraft with a maximum weight of more than 75,000 pounds that is imported into a
noncontiguous State or a territory or possession of the United States after November 4,
1990, may be used to provide air transportation in the 48 contiguous States only if the
aircraft complies with the stage 3 noise levels.

§ 47531. Penalties for violating sections 47528-47530

A person violating section 47528, 47529, or 47530 of this title or a regulation prescribed
under any of those sections is subject to the same civil penalties and procedures under
chapter 463 of this title as a person violating section 44701(a) or (b) or any of sections
44702-44716 of this title.

§ 47532. Judicial review

An action taken by the Secretary of Transportation under any of sections 47528-47531
of this title is subject to judicial review as provided under section 46110 of this title.

§ 47533. Relationship to other laws

Except as provided by section 47524 of this title, this subchapter does not affect--

(1) law in effect on November 5, 1990, on airport noise or access restrictions by local
authorities;
(2) any proposed airport noise or access restriction at a general aviation airport if the
airport proprietor has formally initiated a regulatory or legislative process before
October 2, 1990; or
(3) the authority of the Secretary of Transportation to seek and obtain legal remedies the
Secretary considers appropriate, including injunctive relief.
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